UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE

A GUIDE TO BENEFITS AND EMPLOYMENT SERVICES

Bilingual Representatives Available



This booklet is issued by the California Employment Development Department. It contains general information about your rights, responsibilities, and benefits under the California Unemployment Insurance laws. The information is not intended to cover all provisions of the law. For specific information regarding your claim, call the Employment Development Department. The telephone numbers are listed inside this handbook.

READ THIS HANDBOOK COMPLETELY AND CAREFULLY

Failure to follow the instructions in this handbook, make timely inquiries when necessary, report as directed, file required documents in a timely manner, or file claim forms as directed may result in delay or loss of your unemployment benefits.

Do not rely on advice from friends or relatives. If you do not understand something or have a problem with your claim, call the Employment Development Department (EDD), Unemployment Insurance (UI) office.

If you want or need in-person assistance with UI, call our toll-free telephone number for directions to the nearest EDD location.

EDD UI Toll-Free Telephone Numbers:

English 1-800-300-5616 Spanish 1-800-326-8937 Cantonese 1-800-547-3506 Mandarin 1-866-303-0706 Vietnamese 1-800-547-2058 TTY (Non Voice) 1-800-815-9387

EDD Web site for general information: www.edd.ca.gov



File your UI claim the fast, easy way

– the eApply4UI way!

Go to the eApply4UI Internet application at www.edd.ca.gov/eapply4ui

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Introduction 1
Notice of Unemployment Insurance Award
Explanation of Items on the Notice of Unemployment Insurance Award
Cancelling a Claim14
Waiting Period14
Claiming Unemployment Insurance Benefits
Explanation of Questions on the Claim Form
Unemployment Insurance Checks
Unemployment Insurance Eligibility Requirements21
Penalties
Overpayments
Appealing an EDD Notice
Requesting Copies of Your Unemployment Insurance Documents
Training and Other Special Programs
California Training Benefits24
CTB Training Extension Claims
Trade Adjustment Assistance (TAA) Program
North American Free Trade Agreement Transitional Adjustment Assistance (NTAA)
Federal-State Extended Benefits Program27
Disaster Unemployment Assistance (DUA)27
Work Sharing (WS)
Partial Claims

Other EDD Services

Job Services	28
Reemployment Services	28
One-Stop Services	29
America's Workforce Network (AWN)	29
Disability Insurance (DI)	30
Other Important Information	
Child Support Intercept	30
Fraud Prevention and Detection	31
Verification of Right to Work	31
Verification of Social Security Account Number	32
Confidentiality	33
Privacy Act Statement	33
Telephone Services	33
Telephone Services for the Deaf, Hard of Hearing, and Speech-Disabled	d 34
Internet Services	34
Federal Income Tax and Unemployment Insurance Benefits	35
Voluntary Federal Income Tax Withholding	35
1099G	35
Americans With Disabilities Statement	Back Cover

Need help looking for a good job?



Your local Job Service provides services that can assist you in finding employment. There are no fees for these services. Refer to the <u>Other EDD</u> <u>Services</u> section of this handbook under <u>Job Services</u>.

This booklet provides a general overview of the Unemployment Insurance (UI) program. For specific information about your claim, call the Employment Development Department, Unemployment Insurance (EDD UI) toll free telephone number below.

The UI program provides financial benefits for workers who are unemployed through no fault of their own, who are able to, available for, and actively seeking work as instructed. Eligibility for receiving benefits is set by law. The Employment Development Department (EDD) administers these laws. You can find California's UI eligibility requirements in the Unemployment Insurance Code.

In California, no deduction is made from the worker's wages to finance UI. It is paid entirely by employers.

Your claim is subject to periodic quality control and benefit audit reviews. There are severe administrative and/or criminal penalties imposed on individuals found guilty of UI fraud. Claimants reporting false information to obtain UI benefits may be subject to those penalties.

EDD UI Toll-Free Telephone Numbers:

English 1-800-300-5616 Spanish 1-800-326-8937 Cantonese 1-800-547-3506 Mandarin 1-866-303-0706 Vietnamese 1-800-547-2058 TTY (Non Voice) 1-800-815-9387

EDD Web site for general information: www.edd.ca.gov

YOUR CLAIM FOR UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE BENEFITS HAS BEEN FILED

NOTICE OF UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE AWARD

The Notice of Unemployment Insurance Award provides information about when your claim begins, your award and the earnings upon which the claim is based. It also gives instructions regarding your requirement to seek work. Each of the numbered items is explained on the following pages.

Notice of Unemployment Insurance Award Sample

						Mail Date: SSN:	00/00/0000
							000-00-0000
						English Spanish Cantonese Mandarin Vietnamese	1-866-303-0706
	ant's Name ant's Address CA Zip Co	de					
		NOTICE	OF UNEMPLOY	MENT	INSURANCE	AWARD	
. c	laim Beginning Dat		0/00/0000	2.	Claim Ending		00/00/0000
3. M	aximum Benefit An	nount:	\$0000	4.	Weekly Bene	efit Amount:	\$000
i. T	otal Wages:		00,000.00	6.	Highest Qua	rter Earnings:	0,000.00
. TI	his item does not a	oply to your cla	aim.				
	ou must look for f mployment Service						enefits and
9. TI	his item does not a	oply to your cla	aim.				
0. E	Employee Name	11. Month/Yea	Employee Wag		he Quarter En	nding: Month/year	12. Employer Nam
	Claimant's Name Claimant's Name	0,000	0,000		0,000	0,000	ABC CO XYZ CO
13. 1	Γotals:	0,000	0,000		0,000	0,000	

It is important to check the Notice of Unemployment Insurance Award carefully to make sure that all employers you worked for during the quarters shown are listed.

If you told EDD that you worked for a federal agency or in another state when you filed your claim, your wage information is being requested from that agency or state.

You will receive an amended notice when the federal wages or other state's wages have been added. If an employer is missing, or an employer is shown that you did not work for, or the earnings appear to be incorrect, call EDD and request a correction. Please have this notice available if you call.

EXPLANATION OF ITEMS ON THE NOTICE OF UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE AWARD

- Claim Beginning Date: Your claim begins on the Sunday of the week in which you filed your claim. It is not based on the date you became unemployed.
- Claim Ending Date: This is the date your claim year ends.
 This date is 52 weeks from the claim beginning date. Benefits remaining on this claim cannot be paid for weeks claimed after the claim ending date. A new claim must be filed if you are still unemployed or partially unemployed after this date.
- 3. Maximum Benefit Amount: The amount shown is your maximum UI award for this claim. The maximum award is 26 times the weekly benefit amount or one-half of the total base period wages, whichever is less (see page 4, Item 5, for an explanation of the term base period). When you have received your maximum award, no further benefits are payable. You cannot file another California UI claim until your current claim year ends.
- 4. Weekly Benefit Amount: This is the amount of your weekly benefit. It is the amount you will receive each week if you meet all eligibility requirements. If you work part-time and earn more than \$25 in a week, your weekly benefit amount will be reduced by your earnings that are over \$25. In that case, the portion of the weekly benefit amount that you do not receive remains in your claim for future use until your benefit year ends (see page 16, Item 6, for more information).

5. **Total Wages**: This figure is the total amount of earnings reported by your employer(s) during the <u>base period</u>. These earnings were used to compute your maximum benefit amount.

Your **base period** is a 12-month period of time.

If Your Claim Begins in:	Your Base Period is the 12 Months Which Ended Last:
January, February, March,	September 30
April, May, June,	December 31
July, August, September,	March 31
October, November, December	June 30

To establish a valid claim, you must have earned at least (1) \$1300 in one quarter of your base period, or (2) at least \$900 in your highest quarter and a total of 1.25 times your high quarter earnings in the four quarters of your base period.

A claim is invalid when there are not enough earnings to establish a claim or when there was a prior claim and the work and earnings requirement to have a later claim have not been met (see page 12, Item 9).

6. **Highest Quarter Earnings**: Your base period is divided into calendar quarters. The quarter that you were paid the highest amount of wages determines your weekly benefit amount.

EXAMPLE: Using the Notice of Unemployment Insurance Award

sample printed on page 2, the earnings for each

quarter are:

January, February, March	\$2,122.34
April, May, June	\$6,212.75
July, August, September October, November, December	\$1,974.55 \$7,489.73

In this example, the weekly benefit amount would be determined by the October, November, December quarter because it has the highest earnings. By using the Benefit Table on the following page, you can see that if the high quarter earnings are \$7,489.73, the weekly award is \$289.

Unemployment Insurance Benefit Table For New Claims With a Beginning Date of January 4, 2004, or After

Amount of Wages in Highest Quarter	Weekly Benefit Amount	Amount of Wages in Highest Quarter	Weekly Benefit Amount	Amount of Wages in Highest Quarter	Weekly Benefit Amount
\$ 900.00 - 948.99	9\$ 40	2,106.01 - 2,132.0	00 82	3,198.01 - 3,224.	00 124
949.00 - 974.99	9 41	2,132.01 - 2,158.0	00 83	3,224.01 - 3,250.0	00 125
975.00 - 1,000.99	9 42	2,158.01 - 2,184.0	00 84	3,250.01 - 3,276.0	00 126
1,001.00 - 1,026.99	9 43	2,184.01 - 2,210.0	00 85	3,276.01 - 3,302.0	00 127
1,027.00 - 1,052.99	9 44	2,210.01 - 2,236.0	00 86	3,302.01 - 3,328.0	00 128
1,053.00 - 1,078.99	9 45	2,236.01 - 2,262.0	00 87	3,328.01 - 3,354.0	00 129
1,079.00 - 1,117.99	9 46	2,262.01 - 2,288.0	00 88	3,354.01 - 3,380.0	00 130
1,118.00 - 1,143.99	9 47	2,288.01 - 2,314.0	00 89	3,380.01 - 3,406.0	00 131
1,144.00 - 1,169.99	9 48	2,314.01 - 2,340.0	00 90	3,406.01 - 3,432.0	00 132
1,170.00 - 1,195.99	9 49	2,340.01 - 2,366.0	00 91	3,432.01 - 3,458.0	00 133
1,196.00 - 1,221.99	9 50	2,366.01 - 2,392.0	00 92	3,458.01 - 3,484.0	00 134
1,222.00 - 1,247.99	9 51	2,392.01 - 2,418.0	00 93	3,484.01 - 3,510.0	00 135
1,248.00 - 1,286.99	9 52	2,418.01 - 2,444.0	00 94	3,510.01 - 3,536.0	00 136
1,287.00 - 1,312.99	9 53	2,444.01 - 2,470.0	00 95	3,536.01 - 3,562.0	00 137
1,313.00 - 1,338.99	9 54	2,470.01 - 2,496.0	00 96	3,562.01 - 3,588.0	00 138
1,339.00 - 1,364.99	9 55	2,496.01 - 2,522.0	00 97	3,588.01 - 3,614.0	00 139
1,365.00 - 1,403.99	9 56	2,522.01 - 2,548.0	00 98	3,614.01 - 3,640.0	00 140
1,404.00 - 1,429.99	9 57	2,548.01 - 2,574.0	00 99	3,640.01 - 3,666.0	00 141
1,430.00 - 1,455.99	9 58	2,574.01 - 2,600.0	00 100	3,666.01 - 3,692.0	00 142
1,456.00 - 1,494.99	9 59	2,600.01 - 2,626.0	00 101	3,692.01 - 3,718.0	00 143
1,495.00 - 1,520.99	9 60	2,626.01 - 2,652.0	00 102	3,718.01 - 3,744.0	00 144
1,521.00 - 1,546.99	9 61	2,652.01 - 2,678.0	00 103	3,744.01 - 3,770.0	00 145
1,547.00 - 1,585.99	9 62	2,678.01 - 2,704.0	00 104	3,770.01 - 3,796.0	00 146
1,586.00 - 1,611.99	9 63	2,704.01 - 2,730.0	00 105	3,796.01 - 3,822.0	00 147
1,612.00 - 1,637.99	9 64	2,730.01 - 2,756.0	00 106	3,822.01 - 3,848.0	00 148
1,638.00 - 1,676.99	9 65	2,756.01 - 2,782.0	00 107	3,848.01 - 3,874.0	00 149
1,677.00 - 1,702.99	9 66	2,782.01 - 2,808.0	00 108	3,874.01 - 3,900.0	00 150
1,703.00 - 1,741.99	9 67	2,808.01 - 2,834.0	00 109	3,900.01 - 3,926.0	00 151
1,742.00 - 1,767.99	9 68	2,834.01 - 2,860.0	00 110	3,926.01 - 3,952.0	00 152
1,768.00 - 1,806.99	9 69	2,860.01 - 2,886.0	00 111	3,952.01 - 3,978.0	00 153
1,807.00 - 1,832.99	9 70	2,886.01 - 2,912.0	00 112	3,978.01 - 4,004.0	00 154
1,833.00 - 1,846.00) 71	2,912.01 - 2,938.0	00 113	4,004.01 - 4,030.0	00 155
1,846.01 - 1,872.00) 72	2,938.01 - 2,964.0	00 114	4,030.01 - 4,056.0	00 156
1,872.01 - 1,898.00) 73	2,964.01 - 2,990.0	00 115	4,056.01 - 4,082.0	00 157
1,898.01 - 1,924.00) 74	2,990.01 - 3,016.0	00 116	4,082.01 - 4,108.0	00 158
1,924.01 - 1,950.00) 75	3,016.01 - 3,042.0	00 117	4,108.01 - 4,134.0	00 159
1,950.01 - 1,976.00) 76	3,042.01 - 3,068.0	00 118	4,134.01 - 4,160.0	00 160
1,976.01 - 2,002.00) 77	3,068.01 - 3,094.0	00 119	4,160.01 - 4,186.0	00 161
2,002.01 - 2,028.00) 78	3,094.01 - 3,120.0	00 120	4,186.01 - 4,212.0	00 162
2,028.01 - 2,054.00) 79	3,120.01 - 3,146.0	00 121	4,212.01 - 4,238.0	00 163
2,054.01 - 2,080.00) 80	3,146.01 - 3,172.0	00 122	4,238.01 - 4,264.0	00 164
2,080.01 - 2,106.00		3,172.01 - 3,198.0	00 123	4,264.01 - 4,290.0	00 165

Unemployment Insurance Benefit Table For New Claims With a Beginning Date of January 4, 2004, or After

Amount of Wages in Highest Quarter	Weekly Benefit Amount	Amount of Wages in Highest Quarter	Weekly Benefit Amount	Amount of Wages in Highest Quarter	Weekly Benefit Amount
4,290.01 - 4,316.0	00 166	5,382.01 - 5,408.	00 208	6,474.01 - 6,500.	00 250
4,316.01 - 4,342.0	00 167	5,408.01 - 5,434.	00 209	6,500.01 - 6,526.	00 251
4,342.01 - 4,368.0	00 168	5,434.01 - 5,460.	00 210	6,526.01 - 6,552.	00 252
4,368.01 - 4,394.0	00 169	5,460.01 - 5,486.	00 211	6,552.01 - 6,578.	00 253
4,394.01 - 4,420.0	00 170	5,486.01 - 5,512.	00 212	6,578.01 - 6,604.	00 254
4,420.01 - 4,446.0	00 171	5,512.01 - 5,538.	00 213	6,604.01 - 6,630.	00 255
4,446.01 - 4,472.0	00 172	5,538.01 - 5,564.	00 214	6,630.01 - 6,656.	00 256
4,472.01 - 4,498.0	00 173	5,564.01 - 5,590.	00 215	6,656.01 - 6,682.	00 257
4,498.01 - 4,524.0	00 174	5,590.01 - 5,616.	00 216	6,682.01 - 6,708.	00 258
4,524.01 - 4,550.0	00 175	5,616.01 - 5,642.	00 217	6,708.01 - 6,734.	00 259
4,550.01 - 4,576.0	00 176	5,642.01 - 5,668.	00 218	6,734.01 - 6,760.	00 260
4,576.01 - 4,602.0	00 177	5,668.01 - 5,694.	00 219	6,760.01 - 6,786.	00 261
4,602.01 - 4,628.0	00 178	5,694.01 - 5,720.		6,786.01 - 6,812.	00 262
4,628.01 - 4,654.0	00 179	5,720.01 - 5,746.	00 221	6,812.01 - 6,838.	00 263
4,654.01 - 4,680.0	00 180	5,746.01 - 5,772.	00 222	6,838.01 - 6,864.	00 264
4,680.01 - 4,706.0	00 181	5,772.01 - 5,798.	00 223	6,864.01 - 6,890.	00 265
4,706.01 - 4,732.0		5,798.01 - 5,824.		6,890.01 - 6,916.	
4,732.01 - 4,758.0		5,824.01 - 5,850.		6,916.01 - 6,942.	
4,758.01 - 4,784.0		5,850.01 - 5,876.		6,942.01 - 6,968.	
4,784.01 - 4,810.0		5,876.01 - 5,902.		6,968.01 - 6,994.	
4,810.01 - 4,836.0		5,902.01 - 5,928.		6,994.01 - 7,020.	
4,836.01 - 4,862.0		5,928.01 - 5,954.		7,020.01 - 7,046.	
4,862.01 - 4,888.0		5,954.01 - 5,980.		7,046.01 - 7,072.	
4,888.01 - 4,914.0		5,980.01 - 6,006.		7,072.01 - 7,098.	
4,914.01 - 4,940.0		6,006.01 - 6,032.		7,098.01 - 7,124.	
4,940.01 - 4,966.0		6,032.01 - 6,058.		7,124.01 - 7,150.	
4,966.01 - 4,992.0		6,058.01 - 6,084.		7,150.01 - 7,176.	
4,992.01 - 5,018.0		6,084.01 - 6,110.		7,176.01 - 7,176.	
5,018.01 - 5,044.0		6,110.01 - 6,136.		7,202.01 - 7,202.	
5,044.01 - 5,070.0		6,136.01 - 6,162.		7,228.01 - 7,254.	
5,070.01 - 5,096.0		6,162.01 - 6,188.		7,254.01 - 7,234.	
5,096.01 - 5,122.0		6,188.01 - 6,214.		7,280.01 - 7,306.	
5,122.01 - 5,148.0		6,214.01 - 6,240.		7,306.01 - 7,332.	
5,148.01 - 5,174.0		6,240.01 - 6,266.		7,332.01 - 7,358.	
5,174.01 - 5,200.0		6,266.01 - 6,292.		7,358.01 - 7,384.	
5,200.01 - 5,226.0		6,292.01 - 6,318.		7,384.01 - 7,410.	
5,226.01 - 5,252.0		6,318.01 - 6,344.		7,410.01 - 7,410.	
5,252.01 - 5,278.0		6,344.01 - 6,370.		7,436.01 - 7,462.	
5,278.01 - 5,304.0		6,370.01 - 6,396.		7,462.01 - 7,482.	
5,304.01 - 5,330.0		6,396.01 - 6,422.		7,488.01 - 7,514.	
5,330.01 - 5,356.0		6,422.01 - 6,448.		7,514.01 - 7,540.	
5,356.01 - 5,382.0		6,448.01 - 6,448.		7,540.01 - 7,540.	
2,330.01 - 3,382.0	00 20/	0,440.01 - 0,4/4.	00 249	7,340.01 - 7,366.	υυ ∠91

Unemployment Insurance Benefit Table For New Claims With a Beginning Date of January 4, 2004, or After

Amount of Wages in Highest Quarter	Weekly Benefit Amount	Amount of Wages in Highest Quarter	Weekly Benefit Amount	Amount of Wages in Highest Quarter	Weekly Benefit Amount
7,566.01 - 7,592.0	00 292	8,632.01 - 8,658.	00 333	9,698.01 - 9,724	1.00 37
7,592.01 - 7,618.0	00 293	8,658.01 - 8,684.	00 334	9,724.01 - 9,750	0.00 37
7,618.01 - 7,644.0	00 294	8,684.01 - 8,710.	00 335	9,750.01 - 9,776	5.00 37
7,644.01 - 7,670.0	00 295	8,710.01 - 8,736.	00 336	9,776.01 - 9,802	2.00 37
7,670.01 - 7,696.0	00 296	8,736.01 - 8,762.	00 337	9,802.01 - 9,828	3.00 37
7,696.01 - 7,722.0	00 297	8,762.01 - 8,788.	00 338	9,828.01 - 9,854	1.00 37
7,722.01 - 7,748.0	00 298	8,788.01 - 8,814.	00 339	9,854.01 - 9,880	0.00 38
7,748.01 - 7,774.0	00 299	8,814.01 - 8,840.	00 340	9,880.01 - 9,906	5.00 38
7,774.01 - 7,800.0	00 300	8,840.01 - 8,866.	00 341	9,906.01 - 9,932	2.00 38
7,800.01 - 7,826.0	00 301	8,866.01 - 8,892.	00 342	9,932.01 - 9,958	3.00 38
7,826.01 - 7,852.0	00 302	8,892.01 - 8,918.	00 343	9,958.01 - 9,984	.00 38
7,852.01 - 7,878.0	00 303	8,918.01 - 8,944.	00 344	9,984.01 - 10,010	0.00 38
7,878.01 - 7,904.0	00 304	8,944.01 - 8,970.	00 345	10,010.01 - 10,036	5.00 38
7,904.01 - 7,930.0	00 305	8,970.01 - 8,996.	00 346	10,036.01 - 10,062	2.00 38
7,930.01 - 7,956.0	00 306	8,996.01 - 9,022.	00 347	10,062.01 - 10,088	3.00 38
7,956.01 - 7,982.0	00 307	9,022.01 - 9,048.	00 348	10,088.01 - 10,114	1.00 38
7,982.01 - 8,008.0	00 308	9,048.01 - 9,074.	00 349	10,114.01 - 10,140	0.00 39
8,008.01 - 8,034.0	00 309	9,074.01 - 9,100.	00 350	10,140.01 - 10,166	5.00 39
8,034.01 - 8,060.0	00 310	9,100.01 - 9,126.	00 351	10,166.01 - 10,192	2.00 39
8,060.01 - 8,086.0		9,126.01 - 9,152.	00 352	10,192.01 - 10,218	3.00 39
8,086.01 - 8,112.0	00 312	9,152.01 - 9,178.		10,218.01 - 10,244	
8,112.01 - 8,138.0	00 313	9,178.01 - 9,204.	00 354	10,244.01 - 10,270	0.00 39
8,138.01 - 8,164.0	00 314	9,204.01 - 9,230.	00 355	10,270.01 - 10,296	5.00 39
8,164.01 - 8,190.0	00 315	9,230.01 - 9,256.	00 356	10,296.01 - 10,322	2.00 39
8,190.01 - 8,216.0	00 316	9,256.01 - 9,282.	00 357	10,322.01 - 10,348	3.00 39
8,216.01 - 8,242.0	00 317	9,282.01 - 9,308.		10,348.01 - 10,374	
8,242.01 - 8,268.0		9,308.01 - 9,334.		10,374.01 - 10,400	
8,268.01 - 8,294.0		9,334.01 - 9,360.		10,400.01 - 10,426	
8,294.01 - 8,320.0		9,360.01 - 9,386.		10,426.01 - 10,452	
8,320.01 - 8,346.0		9,386.01 - 9,412.		10,452.01 - 10,478	
8,346.01 - 8,372.0		9,412.01 - 9,438.		10,478.01 - 10,504	
8,372.01 - 8,398.0		9,438.01 - 9,464.		10,504.01 - 10,530	
8,398.01 - 8,424.0		9,464.01 - 9,490.		10,530.01 - 10,556	
8,424.01 - 8,450.0		9,490.01 - 9,516.		10,556.01 - 10,582	
8,450.01 - 8,476.0		9,516.01 - 9,542.		10,582.01 - 10,608	
8,476.01 - 8,502.0		9,542.01 - 9,568.		10,608.01 - 10,634	
8,502.01 - 8,528.0		9,568.01 - 9,594.		10,634.01 and ove	
8,528.01 - 8,554.0		9,594.01 - 9,620.		-,	
8,554.01 - 8,580.0		9,620.01 - 9,646.			
8,580.01 - 8,606.0		9,646.01 - 9,672.			
8,606.01 - 8,632.0		9,672.01 - 9,698.			

Unemployment Insurance Benefit Table For New Claims With a Beginning Date of January 2, 2005 or After

Amount of Wages in Highest Quarter	Weekly Benefit Amount	Amount of Wages in Highest Quarter	Weekly Benefit Amount	Amount of Wages in Highest Quarter	Weekly Benefit Amount
\$ 900.00 - 948.9	9 \$ 40	2,210.01 - 2,236.0	00 86	3,406.01 - 3,432.	00 132
949.00 - 974.9	99 41	2,236.01 - 2,262.0	00 87	3,432.01 - 3,458.	00 133
975.00 - 1,000.9	99 42	2,262.01 - 2,288.0	00 88	3,458.01 - 3,484.	00 134
1,001.00 - 1,026.9	99 43	2,288.01 - 2,314.0	00 89	3,484.01 - 3,510.	00 135
1,027.00 - 1,052.9	99 44	2,314.01 - 2,340.0	00 90	3,510.01 - 3,536.	00 136
1,053.00 - 1,078.9	99 45	2,340.01 - 2,366.0	00 91	3,536.01 - 3,562.	00 137
1,079.00 - 1,117.9	99 46	2,366.01 - 2,392.0	00 92	3,562.01 - 3,588.	00 138
1,118.00 - 1,143.9	99 47	2,392.01 - 2,418.0	00 93	3,588.01 - 3,614.	00 139
1,144.00 - 1,169.9	99 48	2,418.01 - 2,444.0	00 94	3,614.01 - 3,640.	
1,170.00 - 1,195.9		2,444.01 - 2,470.0		3,640.01 - 3,666.	
1,196.00 - 1,221.9		2,470.01 - 2,496.0		3,666.01 - 3,692.	
1,222.00 - 1,247.9		2,496.01 - 2,522.0		3,692.01 - 3,718.	
1,248.00 - 1,286.9		2,522.01 - 2,548.0		3,718.01 - 3,744.	
1,287.00 - 1,312.9		2,548.01 - 2,574.0		3,744.01 - 3,770.	
1,313.00 - 1,338.9		2,574.01 - 2,600.0		3,770.01 - 3,796.	
1,339.00 - 1,364.9		2,600.01 - 2,626.0		3,796.01 - 3,822.	
1,365.00 - 1,403.9		2,626.01 - 2,652.0		3,822.01 - 3,848.	
1,404.00 - 1,429.9		2,652.01 - 2,678.0		3,848.01 - 3,874.	
1,430.00 - 1,455.9		2,678.01 - 2,704.0		3,874.01 - 3,900.	
1,456.00 - 1,494.9		2,704.01 - 2,730.0		3,900.01 - 3,926.	
1,495.00 - 1,494.9		2,730.01 - 2,756.0		3,926.01 - 3,952.	
1,521.00 - 1,546.9		2,756.01 - 2,782.0		3,952.01 - 3,952.	
1,547.00 - 1,585.9		2,782.01 - 2,808.0		3,978.01 - 4,004.	
1,586.00 - 1,611.9		2,808.01 - 2,834.0		4,004.01 - 4,030.	
1,612.00 - 1,637.9		2,834.01 - 2,860.0		4,030.01 - 4,056.	
1,638.00 - 1,676.9		2,860.01 - 2,886.0		4,056.01 - 4,082.	
1,677.00 - 1,702.9		2,886.01 - 2,912.0		4,082.01 - 4,108.	
1,703.00 - 1,741.9		2,912.01 - 2,938.0		4,108.01 - 4,134.	
1,742.00 - 1,767.9		2,938.01 - 2,964.0		4,134.01 - 4,160.	
1,768.00 - 1,806.9		2,964.01 - 2,990.0		4,160.01 - 4,186.	
1,807.00 - 1,832.9		2,990.01 - 2,990.0			
,		,		4,186.01 - 4,212.	
1,833.00 - 1,846.0		3,016.01 - 3,042.0		4,212.01 - 4,238.	
1,846.01 - 1,872.0		3,042.01 - 3,068.0		4,238.01 - 4,264.	
1,872.01 - 1,898.0		3,068.01 - 3,094.0		4,264.01 - 4,290.	
1,898.01 - 1,924.0		3,094.01 - 3,120.0		4,290.01 - 4,316.	
1,924.01 - 1,950.0		3,120.01 - 3,146.0		4,316.01 - 4,342.	
1,950.01 - 1,976.0		3,146.01 - 3,172.0		4,342.01 - 4,368.	
1,976.01 - 2,002.0		3,172.01 - 3,198.0		4,368.01 - 4,394.	
2,002.01 - 2,028.0		3,198.01 - 3,224.0		4,394.01 - 4,420.	
2,028.01 - 2,054.0		3,224.01 - 3,250.0		4,420.01 - 4,446.	
2,054.01 - 2,080.0		3,250.01 - 3,276.0		4,446.01 - 4,472.	
2,080.01 - 2,106.0		3,276.01 - 3,302.0		4,472.01 - 4,498.	
2,106.01 - 2,132.0		3,302.01 - 3,328.0		4,498.01 - 4,524.	
2,132.01 - 2,158.0		3,328.01 - 3,354.0		4,524.01 - 4,550.	
2,158.01 - 2,184.0		3,354.01 - 3,380.0		4,550.01 - 4,576.	
2,184.01 - 2,210.0	00 85	3,380.01 - 3,406.0	JU131	4,576.01 - 4,602.	OO 177

Unemployment Insurance Benefit Table For New Claims With a Beginning Date of January 2, 2005 or After

Amount of Wages in Highest Quarter	Weekly Benefit Amount	Amount of Wages in Highest Quarter	Weekly Benefit Amount	Amount of Wages in Highest Quarter	Weekly Benefit Amount
4,602.01 - 4,628.0	00 178	5,798.01 - 5,824.	00 224	6,994.01 - 7,020	.00 270
4,628.01 - 4,654.0	00 179	5,824.01 - 5,850.	00 225	7,020.01 - 7,046	.00 271
4,654.01 - 4,680.0	00 180	5,850.01 - 5,876.	00 226	7,046.01 - 7,072	.00 272
4,680.01 - 4,706.0	00 181	5,876.01 - 5,902.	00 227	7,072.01 - 7,098	.00 273
4,706.01 - 4,732.0	00 182	5,902.01 - 5,928.	00 228	7,098.01 - 7,124	.00 274
4,732.01 - 4,758.0	00 183	5,928.01 - 5,954.	00 229	7,124.01 - 7,150	.00 275
4,758.01 - 4,784.0	00 184	5,954.01 - 5,980.	00 230	7,150.01 - 7,176	.00 276
4,784.01 - 4,810.0	00 185	5,980.01 - 6,006.	00 231	7,176.01 - 7,202	.00 277
4,810.01 - 4,836.0	00 186	6,006.01 - 6,032.	00 232	7,202.01 - 7,228	.00 278
4,836.01 - 4,862.0	00 187	6,032.01 - 6,058.	00 233	7,228.01 - 7,254	.00 279
4,862.01 - 4,888.0	00 188	6,058.01 - 6,084.	00 234	7,254.01 - 7,280	
4,888.01 - 4,914.0		6,084.01 - 6,110.		7,280.01 - 7,306	
4,914.01 - 4,940.0		6,110.01 - 6,136.		7,306.01 - 7,332	
4,940.01 - 4,966.0		6,136.01 - 6,162.		7,332.01 - 7,358	
4,966.01 - 4,992.0		6,162.01 - 6,188.		7,358.01 - 7,384	
4,992.01 - 5,018.0		6,188.01 - 6,214.		7,384.01 - 7,410	
5,018.01 - 5,044.0		6,214.01 - 6,240.		7,410.01 - 7,436	
5,044.01 - 5,070.0		6,240.01 - 6,266.		7,436.01 - 7,462	
5,070.01 - 5,096.0		6,266.01 - 6,292.		7,462.01 - 7,488	
5,096.01 - 5,122.0		6,292.01 - 6,318.		7,488.01 - 7,514	
5,122.01 - 5,148.0		6,318.01 - 6,344.		7,514.01 - 7,540	
5,148.01 - 5,174.0		6,344.01 - 6,370.		7,540.01 - 7,566	
5,174.01 - 5,200.0		6,370.01 - 6,396.		7,566.01 - 7,592	
5,200.01 - 5,226.0		6,396.01 - 6,422.		7,592.01 - 7,618	
5,226.01 - 5,252.0		6,422.01 - 6,448.		7,618.01 - 7,644	
5,252.01 - 5,278.0		6,448.01 - 6,474.		7,644.01 - 7,670	
5,278.01 - 5,304.0		6,474.01 - 6,500.		7,670.01 - 7,696	
5,304.01 - 5,330.0		6,500.01 - 6,526.		7,696.01 - 7,722	
5,330.01 - 5,356.0		6,526.01 - 6,552.		7,722.01 - 7,748	
5,356.01 - 5,382.0		6,552.01 - 6,578.		7,748.01 - 7,774	
5,382.01 - 5,408.0		6,578.01 - 6,604.		7,774.01 - 7,800	
5,408.01 - 5,434.0		6,604.01 - 6,630.		7,800.01 - 7,826	
5,434.01 - 5,460.0		6,630.01 - 6,656.		7,826.01 - 7,852	
5,460.01 - 5,486.0		6,656.01 - 6,682.		7,852.01 - 7,878	
5,486.01 - 5,512.0		6,682.01 - 6,708.		7,878.01 - 7,904	
5,512.01 - 5,538.0		6,708.01 - 6,734.		7,904.01 - 7,930	
5,538.01 - 5,564.0		6,734.01 - 6,760.		7,930.01 - 7,956	
5,564.01 - 5,590.0		6,760.01 - 6,786.			
5,590.01 - 5,616.0		6,786.01 - 6,812.		7,956.01 - 7,982 7,982.01 - 8,008	
5,616.01 - 5,642.0		6,812.01 - 6,838.		8,008.01 - 8,034	
5,642.01 - 5,668.0		6,838.01 - 6,864.		8,034.01 - 8,060	
5,668.01 - 5,694.0		6,864.01 - 6,890.		8,060.01 - 8,086	
5,694.01 - 5,720.0		6,890.01 - 6,916.		8,086.01 - 8,112	
5,720.01 - 5,746.0		6,916.01 - 6,942.		8,112.01 - 8,138	
5,746.01 - 5,772.0		6,942.01 - 6,968.		8,138.01 - 8,164	
5,772.01 - 5,798.0	JU 223	6,968.01 - 6,994.	υυ 269	8,164.01 - 8,190	.00 315

Unemployment Insurance Benefit Table For New Claims With a Beginning Date of January 2, 2005 or After

Amount of Wages in Highest Quarter	Weekly Benefit Amount	Amount of Wages in Highest Quarter	Weekly Benefit Amount	Amount of Wages in Highest Quarter	Weekly Benefit Amount
8,190.01 - 8,216.00	0 316	9,386.01 - 9,412.0	00 362	10,582.01 - 10,60	8.00 40
8,216.01 - 8,242.00	0 317	9,412.01 - 9,438.0	00 363	10,608.01 - 10,63	4.00 40
8,242.01 - 8,268.00	318	9,438.01 - 9,464.0	00 364	10,634.01 - 10,66	0.00 41
8,268.01 - 8,294.00	0 319	9,464.01 - 9,490.0	00 365	10,660.01 - 10,68	6.00 41
8,294.01 - 8,320.00	0 320	9,490.01 - 9,516.0	00 366	10,686.01 - 10,71	2.00 41
8,320.01 - 8,346.00	0 321	9,516.01 - 9,542.0	00 367	10,712.01 - 10,73	8.00 41
8,346.01 - 8,372.00	0 322	9,542.01 - 9,568.0	00 368	10,738.01 - 10,76	4.00 41
8,372.01 - 8,398.00	0 323	9,568.01 - 9,594.0	00 369	10,764.01 - 10,79	0.00 41
8,398.01 - 8,424.00	0 324	9,594.01 - 9,620.0	00 370	10,790.01 - 10,81	6.00 41
8,424.01 - 8,450.00	0 325	9,620.01 - 9,646.0	00 371	10,816.01 - 10,84	2.00 41
8,450.01 - 8,476.00	0 326	9,646.01 - 9,672.0	00 372	10,842.01 - 10,86	8.00 41
8,476.01 - 8,502.00		, ,	00 373	10,868.01 - 10,89	
8,502.01 - 8,528.00			00 374	10,894.01 - 10,92	
8,528.01 - 8,554.00			00 375	10,920.01 - 10,94	
8,554.01 - 8,580.00		, ,	00 376	10,946.01 - 10,97	
8,580.01 - 8,606.00			00 377	10,972.01 - 10,99	
8,606.01 - 8,632.00		, ,	00 378	10,998.01 - 11,02	
8,632.01 - 8,658.00		, ,	00 379	11,024.01 - 11,05	
8,658.01 - 8,684.00			00 380	11,050.01 - 11,07	
8,684.01 - 8,710.00		, ,	00 381	11,076.01 - 11,10	
8,710.01 - 8,736.00			00 382	11,102.01 - 11,12	
8,736.01 - 8,762.00		, ,	00 383	11,128.01 - 11,15	
8,762.01 - 8,788.00			00 384	11,154.01 - 11,18	
8,788.01 - 8,814.00		9,984.01 - 10,010.0		11,180.01 - 11,10	
8,814.01 - 8,840.00		10,010.01 - 10,036.0		11,206.01 - 11,23	
8,840.01 - 8,866.00		10,036.01 - 10,062.0		11,232.01 - 11,25	
8,866.01 - 8,892.0		10,062.01 - 10,088.0		11,258.01 - 11,28	
8,892.01 - 8,918.00		10,088.01 - 10,114.0		11,284.01 - 11,31	
8,918.01 - 8,944.00		10,114.01 - 10,140.0		11,310.01 - 11,33	
8,944.01 - 8,970.00		10,140.01 - 10,166.0		11,336.01 - 11,36	
8,970.01 - 8,996.00		10,166.01 - 10,192.0		11,362.01 - 11,38	
8,996.01 - 9,022.00		10,192.01 - 10,218.0		11,388.01 - 11,41	
9,022.01 - 9,048.00		10,218.01 - 10,244.0		11,414.01 - 11,44	
9,048.01 - 9,074.00		10,244.01 - 10,270.0		11,440.01 - 11,46	
9,074.01 - 9,100.00		10,270.01 - 10,296.0		11,466.01 - 11,49	
9,100.01 - 9,126.00		10,296.01 - 10,322.0		11,492.01 - 11,51	
9,126.01 - 9,152.00		10,322.01 - 10,348.0		11,518.01 - 11,54	
9,152.01 - 9,178.00		10,348.01 - 10,374.0		11,544.01 - 11,57	
9,178.01 - 9,204.00		10,374.01 - 10,400.0		11,570.01 - 11,59	
9,204.01 - 9,230.00		10,400.01 - 10,426.0		11,596.01 - 11,62	
9,230.01 - 9,256.00		10,426.01 - 10,452.0		11,622.01 - 11,64	
9,256.01 - 9,282.00		10,452.01 - 10,478.0		11,648.01 - 11,67	
9,282.01 - 9,308.00		10,478.01 - 10,504.0		11,674.01 and over	45
9,308.01 - 9,334.00		10,504.01 - 10,530.0			
9,334.01 - 9,360.00		10,530.01 - 10,556.0			
9,360.01 - 9,386.00	0 361	10,556.01 - 10,582.0	00 407		

Items 7, 8, and 9 contain additional requirements which affect some claims. If the statement "this item does not apply to your claim" appears, that requirement or condition does not affect your claim.

- 7. School Employee wages: You may not be able to receive benefits that are based on school wages during a school recess period. School wages include work for an educational institution or with a nonprofit organization or any public entity employer that provided services to or on behalf of an educational institution. The maximum and weekly benefits awards shown here are the awards without the school wages. These awards are the amounts that may be payable if your claim is filed during a school recess period. If you did not have any or you did not have enough non-educational earnings, it will state "This item does not apply to your claim."
- 8. **Work Search Requirements**: To be eligible for UI benefits, you must conduct a reasonable effort to search for suitable work. Below are some tips for looking for work.

The kind of work you are looking for, whether full-time or parttime, will determine how you look for work. Some jobs require a résumé while other jobs require an in-person visit and an application. Tips for looking for work include:

- Register with EDD Job Service.
- Respond to want ads in the newspaper.
- Contact employers who may have jobs in your field.
- Contact prior employers.
- Tell friends and relatives that you are looking for work.
- Check trade books for your occupation.
- Send résumés.
- Register with placement facilities of a school, college, university, or professional organization.

Your individual instructions for conducting a work search are shown here. Your instructions will be one of the following:

→ You must look for full-time work each week.

This means you are required to look for full-time work each week to remain eligible for UI benefits.

→ You must look for part-time work each week as instructed by EDD.

This means you are required to look for part-time work each week as instructed by EDD to remain eligible for UI benefits. You must also be able to work and available for part-time work each week as instructed by EDD.

→ You must register with your union and look for full-time work each week.

This means that you are required to follow your union's requirements for registering as out of work <u>and</u> you must also look for full-time work on your own to remain eligible for UI benefits.

→ You must register with your union and look for part-time work each week as instructed by EDD.

This means that you are required to follow your union's requirements for registering as out of work <u>and</u> you must also look for part-time work on your own as instructed by EDD to remain eligible for UI benefits.

→ You must register with your union and meet all union reporting requirements and dispatch contacts.

Since your union controls hiring in your occupation, you must meet all union requirements for dispatch. If you are not in good standing with your union, you may not be eligible for UI benefits.

→ You must be able to work and available for work each week.

This means that you are not required to look for work, but you must be able to work and available for work each week to be eligible for UI benefits.

→ This item does not apply to your claim.

You are claiming benefits under a special program that does not require a search for work, such as Work Share.

- 9. **Requalification Requirements**: To requalify for a second claim you must have worked and earned at least (1) \$1300 in one quarter, or (2) at least \$900 in your highest quarter and a total of 1.25 times your high quarter earnings <u>during the benefit year of your original claim</u>. (In some cases, Workers' Compensation or Disability Insurance benefits may be used in place of earnings.)
- 10. Employee's Name(s): This is the name your employer used to report your earnings to EDD. Do not be concerned about minor misspellings in your name as long as the earnings shown are yours.
- 11. Employee's Wages for the Calendar Quarter Ending: These are the four quarters in your base period and the wages your employer(s) reported you earned in each of the quarters. These earnings determine the amount of your UI award. If you told EDD that you worked for a federal agency or in another state when you filed your claim, your wages are being requested from that agency or state. You will receive an amended notice when the federal wages or other state's wages have been added.

If you worked in more than one state, you may be able to combine the wages you earned during your base period into a combined wage claim. Combining these wages could increase your maximum and/or your weekly benefit amount. If you did not tell EDD at the time you filed your claim that you worked in more than one state, call EDD immediately.

If you believe the earnings shown are incorrect or are not your wages, call EDD and request a correction.

- 12. **Employer Name**: This is the name(s) of the employer(s) who reported the quarterly wages shown in Item 11. If you did not work for an employer shown, or if you worked for an employer(s) that is not shown, call EDD and request a correction.
- 13. **Totals**: This is the total amount of earnings reported by your employer(s) in each calendar quarter listed in Item 11.

IF YOU HAVE ANY QUESTIONS ABOUT YOUR NOTICE OF UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE AWARD, CALL IMMEDIATELY.

CANCELLING A CLAIM

If you find that you would benefit by waiting until a later date to file your claim, you may be able to cancel this claim. You can cancel your claim up to and including 30 days after the mailing of the Notice of Unemployment Insurance Award if you have not <u>cashed</u> a benefit check or have not been <u>issued</u> a written notice of disqualification. If you have questions regarding claim cancellation or want to cancel your claim, call EDD.

IMPORTANT: Once a claim has been cancelled, it cannot be reestablished with the same beginning date.

WAITING PERIOD

California law requires every person to serve a one week **UNPAID** waiting period. There is only one waiting period during each 52 week claim year. The waiting week is usually the first otherwise payable week in your benefit year (otherwise payable means you would have been eligible for payment in every way but for the waiting period requirement).

There are two exceptions when a week other than the first otherwise payable week is used as the waiting period:

- If you received benefits the last week of the benefit year of your claim and you filed a second claim starting the following week, the waiting period for the second claim will be taken after the first break in payment status on the new claim.
- 2. You may receive waiting period credit for your new claim on the last week of your prior claim if:
 - All benefits were previously paid on your old claim, and
 - You file a new claim within the last week of the old claim, and
 - You are otherwise eligible for benefits for the last week of the old claim.

CLAIMING UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE BENEFITS

Your notice of UI award was mailed with this booklet. Your first Continued Claim form is mailed separately. If you do not receive the claim form within 10 days of filing your claim, call EDD and request a duplicate. You cannot be paid UI benefits unless you submit a completed and signed Continued Claim form.

Complete and mail the Continued Claim form on the date shown on the front of the form. Mailing the claim form more than 14 days after the last week ending date on the form could cause you to lose your benefits.

Continued Claim Form Sample

	R DELIVERY OF CH	ECK.	DETACH THIS S	STUB FOR YOUR	RECOR)			
CONTINUED									
						ICT I	WEEK	ONE	WEEK
ANSWER ALL QUEST OF HOW TO COMPLE in your booklet, A Gui	ETE YOUR ANSW	VERS. Each	question is exp		Begins Ends		Be En	gins ds	
COMPLETE AND MAI	IL THIS FORM O	N				YES	NO	YES	NO
I. Were you too sick of	or injured to work	?			>	0	0	0	0
If yes, enter the nu	mber of days (1 t	hrough 7) yo	u were unable t	o work.	>	- 1	(1 - 7)		(I - 7)
Was there any reas accepted full time v	on (other than sid vork each workda	kness or inj	ury) that you co	uld not have	>	0	0,	0.	0
3. Did you look for wo	rk?				>	0 '	0	0	0
4. Did you refuse any					>	0		o	0
5. Did you begin atten	ding any kind of	school or tra	ining?		>	Π	η .	п	n .
6. Did you work or ear	n any money WE	ETHER VOI	I WEDE DAID	OD NOT2			J	_	
		ICTREA TO	U WENE PAID			11	П	Ιп	11
(If yes, you MUST (COMPLETE items								
a. Enter earnings b b. Report employm	COMPLETE items before deductions bent or 'source' of	here earnings info	ormation below:	\$	Une 70	Pone	\$	SON NO LONGE	n Wonking
(If yes, you MUST of a. Enter earnings b b. Report employm	COMPLETE items before deductions bent or 'source' of	here earnings info	ormation below:		NDE ZIP	CODE	REA (OR	SON NO LONGE WRITE STILL	R WORKING WORKING')
(If yes, you MUST (a. Enter earnings b b. Report employm OATE LAST WORKED IST WEEK 2ND WEEK	COMPLETE items before deductions tent or 'source' of TOTAL HOURS WORKED	hereearnings info	ormation below:	\$	UDE ZIP	CODE	S REAL (OR	SON NO LONGE WRITE STILL	R WORKING WORKING ')
(If yes, you MUST (a. Enter earnings b b. Report employm DATE LAST WORKED IST WEEK 2ND WEEK 7. If you want federal i	COMPLETE items pefore deductions lent or 'source' of TOTAL HOURS WORKED	hereearnings info	Prince And Marci	\$	NDE ZIP	CODE	REAL (OR	SON NO LONGE WALTE STILL	R WORKING WORKING!)
(If yes, you MUST (a. Enter earnings b b. Report employm OATE LAST WORKED IST WEEK IND. WEEK 7. If you want federal i mark this block.	COMPLETE items perfore deductions sent or 'source' of TOTAL HOURS WORKED.	hereearnings info	ormation below: R NAME AND MAILI R NAME	\$	LIDE ZIP	cone	S REAL (OR	SON NO LONGE WRITE STILL	IR WORKING WORKING 1)
(If yes, you MUST (a. Enter earnings b b. Report employm DATE LAST WORKED IST WEEK 2ND WEEK 7. If you want federal i	COMPLETE items perfore deductions sent or 'source' of TOTAL HOURS WORKED.	hereearnings info	ormation below: R NAME AND MAILI R NAME	\$	LUDE ZIP	Code	REAL (OR	SON NO LONGE WAITE STILL	R WORKING WORKING')
(If yes, you MUST (a. Enter earnings b b. Report employm OATE LAST WORKED IST WEEK IND. WEEK 7. If you want federal i mark this block.	COMPLETE items perfore deductions sent or 'source' of TOTAL HOURS WORKED.	hereearnings info	ormation below: R NAME AND MAILI R NAME	\$ NG ADDRESS INCO	····>	0	(OP	WALTE STILL	B WORKING WORKING!) provides penalties lifts; my answers i d permitted to wor
(If yes, you_MUST (a. Enter earnings b b. Report employm OATE LAST WORKED IST WEEK NO. WEEK 7. If you want federal i mark this block.	COMPLETE items perfore deductions sent or 'source' of TOTAL HOURS WORKED.	hereearnings info	ormation below: R NAME AND MAILI R NAME	NG ADDRESS : INCL	tand the alse state correct.	Questions aments or 1 declare en in satisfathis form :	(OP	WALTE STILL	WORKING')
(If yes, you MUST (a. Enter earnings b b. Report employm OATE LAST WORKED IST WEEK IND. WEEK 7. If you want federal i mark this block.	COMPLETE items pertor deductions pertor Source' of TOTAL HOURS WORKED ncome tax withhe of mailing addres d complete Sec.	hereearnings info	ormation below: R NAME AND MAILI R NAME	NG ADDRESS : INCL	tand the alse state correct.	0	(OP	WALTE STILL	WORKING')
(If yes, you MUST' a. Enter earnings b . Report employm LAST WORKED 18T WEEK 1MD WEEK 7. If you want federal imark this block 9. If you had a change mark this block an	COMPLETE items pertor deductions pertor Source' of TOTAL HOURS WORKED ncome tax withhe of mailing addres d complete Sec.	hereearnings info	ormation below: R NAME AND MAILI R NAME	NG ADDRESS : INCL	tand the alse state correct.	Questions aments or 1 declare en in satisfathis form :	(OP	WALTE STILL	WORKING')

An explanation of the questions on the form is provided on the following pages.

The EDD uses an Optical Character Recognition (OCR) machine in its payment system. The OCR machine reads numbers, scans the marks on your claim form, and issues your UI check. The OCR machine only reads clearly printed numbers. An example of how to fill in the blocks and write your numbers is on the back of every claim form. If the OCR machine cannot read your form, another Continued Claim form for the same week(s) will be mailed to you to complete. Do not staple the Continued Claim form or include any other mail in the claim form envelope.

If you do not provide an answer to
Questions #1 through #6, and leave any of
those blocks blank, another claim form will
be mailed to you for completion.
This will delay benefit payment.

EXPLANATION OF QUESTIONS ON THE CLAIM FORM

- 1. Were you too sick or injured to work? You must be well enough to work every day of the week to receive full benefits. If you are unable to work because of illness or injury, you must report the number of days that you could not work. Unemployment benefits are paid according to the number of days you are able to work. Your benefits are reduced one-seventh for each day that you cannot work.
- 2. Was there any reason (other than sickness or injury) that you could not have accepted full-time work each workday? You must be available for work to receive unemployment benefits. Available means you are ready and willing to accept work that matches your occupational skills and educational background. Examples of reasons a person cannot work include lack of child care, lack of transportation, personal business, or being on vacation.
- 3. **Did you look for work?** You must follow the work search requirements on your Notice of Unemployment Insurance Award. Work searches may include in-person, mail, telephone, or Internet contacts with employers. Failure to follow the instructions may result in loss of benefits for the week. Union members should answer "yes" to this question if you meet your union's reporting and dispatch requirements.

If the block under Question #3 is marked with an "X," list your job contacts in Section B on the back of the form.

- 4. Did you refuse any work? Answer "yes" if you refused an offer of work from any employer. Union members answer "yes" if you refused a union referral to a job. If you refused work, you will be scheduled for an interview to determine your continued eligibility for benefits.
- 5. Did you begin attending any kind of school or training? Answer "yes" only if you began attending school or training in that week. Afterwards answer "yes" only when a new term begins or you start new classes during one of the weeks. Since attendance in school or training may affect your eligibility for benefits, an interview will be scheduled to determine your continued eligibility.

6. Did you work or earn any money, WHETHER YOU WERE PAID OR NOT? - Answer "yes" if you performed any work during a week. All work and/or earnings must be reported, including:

You must report lodging and meals, or any other payment you receive instead of money when you work. If you are unsure about how to report wages, call EDD.

If you answered "yes," enter your earnings <u>before taxes</u> in Item a. **NOTE:** Item a. only allows for an entry of up to \$999.99. If your earnings are \$1,000.00 or more in a week enter \$999.99. Enter the last day worked and source of earnings in Item b. If you are still working, write "still working full time" or "still working part time." **NOTE:** Item b. Look at the date each week begins and ends. Be careful that your answers in 6b apply only to the weeks shown on the form.

You may be able to work part time and receive reduced UI benefits, even if your earnings are higher than your weekly benefit amount. You report your <u>total earnings before deductions</u> and EDD will figure the amount to deduct.

- If your weekly earnings are \$100 or less, EDD does not count the first \$25. The amount of earnings over \$25 is subtracted from your weekly benefit amount and you are paid the difference, if any.
- If your weekly earnings are \$101 or more, EDD does not count the first 25 percent of your earnings. The amount of earnings remaining is subtracted from your weekly benefit amount and you are paid the difference, if any.

If you receive Temporary Total Disability, Vocational Rehabilitation Maintenance Allowance, or deductible pension payments, EDD deducts the amount, dollar-for-dollar, from your weekly benefit amount.

NOTE: The EDD has a fraud detection system. If you do not report all earnings for a week that you worked, and you receive benefits, you will be investigated. If EDD determines that you were at fault for not reporting your earnings, you could face administrative and/or criminal penalties.

7. If you want federal income tax withheld for the week(s) shown above, mark this block. - If you want Federal Income Tax withheld for the weeks shown on your claim form, fill in the answer block on that claim form. If you do not want taxes withheld, leave the answer block blank. Your choice remains in effect only until you send in your next Continued Claim form.

For more information about voluntary Federal Income Tax withholding see page 34.

8. If you had a change of mailing address or phone number, mark this block and complete Sec. D on reverse. - You must report a change of mailing address to avoid delay in receiving your benefit checks. To report a change of mailing address or telephone number, mark the block and print your new address (including ZIP code) or telephone number (including area code) in Section D on the back of the Continued Claim form.

If you move to another state and still want to claim benefits, call 1-800-250-3913 for instructions. Failure to contact the office promptly could result in a delay or loss of your benefits.

The lower portion of your Continued Claim form contains the following statement:

"I understand the questions on this form. I know the law provides penalties if I make false statements or withhold facts to receive benefits; my answers are true and correct. I declare under penalty of perjury that I am a U.S. citizen or national; or an alien in satisfactory immigration status and permitted to work by USCIS. I signed this form after the latest date for which I am claiming benefits."

You must sign your Continued Claim form and answer all of the questions in order to receive payment. If you are not sure how to answer the questions or are not legally entitled to work in this country, call EDD immediately.

You are responsible for the answers on your Continued Claim form. If you give false information or do not report information that you should report, you may be subject to disqualification and penalties.

If you do not want to claim benefits for the week(s) on the claim form, do not complete or mail the form to EDD.

If you want to reopen your claim after you have stopped claiming benefits, call EDD or **file on-line using eApply4UI** at www.edd.ca.gov/eapply4ui.

Completing the Back of the Continued Claim Form

MARK THE CO EXAMPLE: IF				Yes I	No	П						RESPUESTA C				No D
IF.	THE ANSWER			Yes [No	Ĭ						SI LA RESPUES				No I
Write numbers Escriba númer		. 0	1	2 3	4	5	6	7	8	9			(b) \$	3 4	1 2	5 8
EXAMPLE: Re EJEMPLO: Re	port earnings of corte ingresos o	(a) \$7 (e: (a)	6.11 \$76.	0 (b) \$34 10 (b) \$3	2.58 12.58	(c) \$10 (c) \$1	050.5 1 <i>05</i> 0.	5, liki 55 as	this:	(a)	\$ 76	10 (c) \$	9 9	9	9 9
Section B / Secci work search for the completar la tabla	e weeks heing	claimec	1 / .	Si el cuad	irado i	an la r	nceau	nta #.	a na F	d reve	rso está marcan	lo con una "X" u	to show y isted debe	our de		
	W	ORK-S	EAF	CH REC	ORD/	RÉC	ORD	DE L	OS L	JGAR	ES DONDE HA	BUSCADO TRA				
Date Applied / Fecha en que Solicitó Empleo	Company Na Nombre de Compañi	ime / i/a a	1		ompai Direci Co	ny Adi ción a mpañ	dress le la la			Pen	son Contacted i sona con quien comunicó	Type of Work For / Clase d que Sol	k Applied e Trabajo licitó	Results	tado: Pieasi Expliqu	e explain i or favor le
									+		-	-				
			1	· .						-						
			+				-		-						-	
			1						_							
			+	- 1					-							
												1				-
Section C / Secc Aviso para La Ins												IT APPROVED TRA NTO DEL DESARF			O (EDD))	
I certify that this satisfactorily pu instruction appr	rsuing the retra	ining co	ours		Sign	ature/	Title							_ Dat	ie	
Development D shown on the fr	epartment durin	g the w	eek	(s)	Nam	e of T	rainir	ng Ins	titutio	n _						
If you are on a se Si Ud. está en va	,												_			
Section D / Secc				ess/ <i>Nue</i>						· que	ograduiu u ia bi	TOUGH.			_	
Complete below a	nd mark Questi	on 8 bk	ock	on front/	Compl	ete ab	ajo y	marq	ue la	pregu	nta 8 en el frente	s. New phone - de teléfono -	include ar incluyend	ea cod o área t	a /Nuevo elefónic	número 3

- Section A Provides examples of how to complete the claim form. As you can see in EXAMPLE (a), there are only three boxes for the dollar amount earned. If your earnings are \$1,000.00 or more in a week, enter \$999.99 in Item 6. a. on the front of the form.
- **Section B** If the box in Question 3 is checked on the front of the form, record your job contacts for the week(s) shown.
- Section C After you have been approved by EDD for training benefits, your training facility must complete this section for each week you attend training.

If you are on a semester/holiday recess, enter the date you are scheduled to return to school on the line provided.

Section D - Used to provide a change of address or telephone number (be sure to mark the block in Item 8 on the front of the form).

AVOID PAYMENT DELAYS, MAKE SURE:

You signed the form.	The form is mailed immediately
$\sqrt{\text{You answered all}}$ questions.	after the last week-ending
Nothing is attached to the form	. date on the form has passed.

UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE CHECKS

The EDD mails your UI checks to you from a central location. The check, your new claim form, and a message stub are printed on a three-part form:

The stub portion at the top of the form contains information about your claim and important messages. You must **read**, **detach**, **and save the stub for your record**.

The middle section of the form is your Continued Claim form. Use it to claim benefits for the next week(s).

Note: If this section is blank, disregard the preprinted reverse side of the form and **do not** mail the form back to EDD.

The bottom portion contains your check. Detach and cash the check where you normally cash checks.

UI CHECKS ARE VALID FOR ONE YEAR FROM DATE OF ISSUE.

If a check is not_issued, only your address and the EDD office address will appear in this space. Detach and destroy this portion of the form. It should <u>not</u> be mailed back to EDD with your completed form.

→ We issue an envelope with your claim form. Mail your claim form, folding it back along the pre-folded line so that the address printed in the lower left hand corner of the Continued Claim form shows through the window of the envelope. Do not mail or take your Continued Claim form to any otheraddress unless instructed to do so.

If you do not receive your check or a response from EDD within **10** days of mailing your claim form, or if you have received your check and it has been lost, stolen, or destroyed, call EDD immediately.

UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE ELIGIBILITY REQUIREMENTS

In order to receive UI benefits you must meet certain eligibility requirements. There is a question regarding your eligibility if you:

- Quit your job.
- Were fired from your job.
- Are out of work due to a strike or lockout.
- Do not have child care.
- Do not have transportation.
- Do not look for work as instructed.
- File your claim late.
- Mail your claim form late.
- Refuse a job.
- Give incorrect information or withhold information.
- Fail to participate in re-employment activities.
- Are a school employee filing a claim during a recess period.
- Are a professional athlete filing a claim during the off-season.
- Are/were not in satisfactory immigration status or legally authorized to work.
- Are attending school during normal working hours for your occupation.
- Are not physically or mentally able to work during normal working hours for your occupation.

If you are scheduled for an interview because there is a question of your eligibility, EDD will call you at the scheduled interview date and time. You have the right to request more time if you need to contact witnesses, gather information, or obtain the advice of a representative. To request more time, call EDD.

The interviewer will ask you questions about the eligibility issue. We record your information and use it to make a decision. If the interview involves an employer, we may contact the employer for additional information. The EDD makes a decision based on all the information available. If you are denied benefits, a written Notice of Determination will be mailed to you. The notice advises you of the reason for EDD's decision and gives you information about your appeal rights.

If you are not available for a scheduled eligibility interview and do not call EDD to arrange another appointment, a decision can be made based on the available facts that may result in denial of your benefits.

PENALTIES

If you willfully give false information or withhold information to claim benefits, EDD will assess a false statement disqualification. A false statement disqualification is a penalty that denies you benefits from 2 to 23 weeks. To end the disqualification, you must first meet all the usual eligibility requirements, **then** serve the penalty by mailing in Continued Claim forms for the number of weeks disqualified. The penalty stays on your record for three years or until served, whichever comes first.

It is illegal to willfully make false statements or knowingly fail to report all facts to receive benefits. Making a false statement or withholding information to receive benefits can be a felony. A person convicted under Section 2101 of the Unemployment Insurance Code will lose the right to collect benefits for 52 weeks. Penalties may include both fines and criminal prosecution.

NOTE: Serving the false statement disqualification does not repay nor reduce the amount of any overpayment.

OVERPAYMENTS

A Notice of Overpayment is mailed to you when you have been paid UI benefits that you were not eligible to receive. The Notice shows the amount of the overpayment and penalties, if any. It explains why you were overpaid and gives you information about your appeal rights.

The EDD classifies overpayments into two categories, non-fraud or fraud:

Non-Fraud: When you have received benefits to which you were not entitled and you are not at fault, the overpayment is considered non-fraud. In some cases, you may not have to repay a non-fraud overpayment. You will receive a notice telling you if the overpayment must be repaid.

Fraud: A fraud overpayment occurs when you knowingly give false information or withhold information and receive benefits that you should not have received. Withholding or giving false information to obtain unemployment insurance benefits are serious offenses that can result in criminal prosecution. With a fraud overpayment, you are assessed a penalty in the amount of 30 percent of the amount of the overpayment and a false statement disqualification of 5 to 23 weeks. Fraud overpayments and penalties must be repaid.

If you do not repay your overpayment promptly, EDD will deduct the money owed from your future weekly unemployment or state disability insurance benefits. This process is referred to as an offset. The EDD may offset up to 100 percent of your benefits. Since EDD cannot offset the penalty portion of an overpayment from your benefits, you must submit a payment to repay the penalty. The EDD may reduce or totally withhold your state income tax refunds, lottery winnings, or any other money owed to you by the state, to repay your overpayment. The EDD may also file a claim against you in court, charge you court costs and interest, and record a lien on your property. You can use your credit card to pay your benefit overpayment.

NOTE: Repaying an overpayment does not remove a disqualification. Call EDD for more information.

APPEALING AN EDD NOTICE

You may appeal any written EDD decision. You must file your appeal in writing and you must state the reasons why you disagree with the decision. You may file an appeal by mail by sending a letter to the address on your Notice of Determination. A letter of appeal must include your name, Social Security number, and the reasons why you disagree with the decision.

You have 20 calendar days from the date of the decision to file a timely appeal. You can still appeal even if you miss the 20 day deadline, however, you must state why your appeal is filed late. You will be required to show good cause for delay in filing an appeal. If you do not show good cause for any delay beyond 20 days, your appeal may be dismissed by the Administrative Law Judge.

The Office of Appeals will notify you of the date, time, and place of your hearing. An Administrative Law Judge conducts your hearing. You have the right to review all records affecting the appeal before your hearing begins. Everyone testifies under oath. All testimony is recorded and is subject to cross-examination. The Administrative Law Judge will mail a decision. If you live in another state, the appeal hearing will be handled by telephone. You do not have to travel to California to attend the appeal hearing.

If you disagree with the decision of the Administrative Law Judge, you may appeal to the California Unemployment Insurance Appeals Board.

If you are claiming benefits, you must continue to mail your Continued Claim forms to EDD while your appeal is pending. If the Administrative Law Judge decides you are eligible, you will only be paid for the weeks that you sent in Continued Claim forms and met all other eligibility requirements.

REQUESTING COPIES OF YOUR UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE DOCUMENTS

If, for personal business reasons, you need copies of UI claim documents, call the EDD Unemployment Insurance numbers listed on page 1 of this handbook.

TRAINING AND OTHER SPECIAL PROGRAMS

California Training Benefits

The California Training Benefits (CTB) program allows you, if qualified, to continue receiving UI benefits while in approved training.

If your training is funded under the Workforce Investment Act (WIA), Employment Training Panel (ETP), Trade Readjustment Act (TRA), or Work Opportunity and Responsibility to Kids (CalWORKs), you are potentially eligible for the CTB program. Contact your local One-Stop Center for the name and location of the training providers in your area. To locate the One-Stop Center nearest you, contact EDD by using the telephone number listed on page 1 of this handbook or visit the EDD Web site at www.edd.ca.gov.

If you live in a state other than California and have a valid California UI claim, your training must be funded by WIA or TRA to be potentially eligible for CTB

If you secure training on your own behalf or are not funded for training by WIA, ETP, TRA, OR CalWORKs, the Department must determine if you meet <u>all</u> the following criteria, in order to be eligible for the CTB program:

- You <u>must</u> be eligible for California UI benefits and be out of work for four or more continuous weeks, or unlikely to return to your most recent work place due to plant closure or substantial reduction in work force, or unemployed due to a mental or physical disability preventing the use of existing job skills, or unemployed due to technological changes in your occupation.
- There <u>must</u> be a lack of demand for your current skills in the local labor market.
- There <u>must</u> be a demand for your training occupation in the local labor market.
- Your training course <u>must</u> be completed within one year, including scheduled breaks and vacations.

- Your training <u>must</u> be full time, not less than 20 hours per week, or 12 semester or quarter units.
- It must be at least three years since your previous participation in CTB.

CTB Training Extension Claims

An extension of CTB training benefits may be available beyond your regular UI claim while you are in approved training. To be eligible for extended training benefits, you **must** ask for information about CTB or apply for CTB training approval **with EDD** no later than the **16th** week of UI benefits paid. If your UI claim award is 16 weeks or less, you **must** ask for information or apply before you receive the **last** UI benefit check. To file an extended training benefits claim, call the telephone number on page 1 of this handbook or file on-line by visiting EDD's Internet Web site at www.edd.ca.gov, after you receive your last UI benefit check.

For information about training benefits or how to apply, call the telephone number listed on page 1 of this handbook and speak with a representative.

Trade Adjustment Assistance (TAA) Program

TAA benefits apply to those claimants whose employers or companies certified for benefits on or after November 4, 2002. North American Free Trade Agreement Transitional Adjustment Assistance (NTAA) benefits apply to those claimants whose employers or companies certified on or before November 3, 2002.

This federally-funded program offers benefits to workers unemployed because of imports from other countries.

These benefits include:

- Weekly Trade Readjustment Allowances (Basic TRA)
- Additional Weekly Trade Readjustment Allowances (Extended TRA)
- Training
- Job Search Allowances
- Relocation Allowances

Basic TRA: Pays a weekly income benefit after you have received all of your regular UI benefits.

Extended TRA: Pays a weekly income benefit after you have received all of your regular UI benefits and basic TRA if the following conditions exists:

Filed on or before November 3, 2002

- You are in an approved training program
- Your application for such training is filed within 210 days from the Department of Labors decision date or your layoff date, whichever is later.

Filed on or after November 4, 2002

- You are in an approved training program
- Your enrollment must be within 16 weeks of separation or 8 weeks of certification from the Department of Labor.

Training: When DOL determines your job loss was caused by foreign imports, you are entitled to one job training program.

Job Search Allowance: When DOL determines your job loss was the result of foreign imports, you have 365 days from DOL's decision date or your layoff date (whichever is later) to apply for these benefits.

Relocation Allowance: If your application is timely, TAA will reimburse a portion of your relocation costs if you have secured suitable employment in a new locality. You have 425 days from DOL's decision date or your layoff date (whichever is later) to apply for these benefits.

The DOL will rule on eligibility for these benefits after receiving a petition filed on behalf of affected workers to determine whether job losses occurred because of foreign imports.

For information about training benefits or how to apply, call the phone number listed on page 1 of this handbook and speak with a representative.

You may obtain a petition for TAA by calling EDD or by calling the Office of Trade Adjustment Assistance with DOL in Washington, D.C., telephone (202) 693-3560.

Petitions may be filed by three workers, their union or their employer, One-Stop operators or partners, State Workforce Agencies, and State dislocated worker units.

North American Free Trade Agreement Transitional Adjustment Assistance (NTAA)

NTAA benefits apply only to those claimants whose employer or company certified for benefits on or before November 3, 2002.

DE 1275A Rev. 44 (8-07) (INTERNET)

Page 26 of 35

This program offers similar benefits to those described under Trade Adjustment Assistance. However, there are some major differences. The DOL must determine you have lost your job because your employer moved the job to Canada or Mexico, or you lost your job because of imports from Canada or Mexico. To be eligible for weekly NTAA-TRA benefits you must be attending training by the end of the 16th week of your most recent qualifying layoff from your trade affected employer or have completed training. If you cannot meet this requirement, you still may be eligible for weekly NTAA-TRA benefits if you are attending approved training by the end of the sixth week after DOL determines you are an affected worker.

You may obtain a petition for NTAA from any EDD office. Petitions may be filed by three workers, their union, their employer, or a community-based organization.

For additional information about these programs, call EDD.

Federal-State Extended Benefits Program

The Extended Benefits program becomes effective ONLY when unemployment is very high. This program pays additional benefits to those who qualify and have collected all the money in their regular claims and are not eligible for any other UI claims. THE EDD WILL NOTIFY YOU, by mail and/or through the media, when you become potentially eligible for this benefit.

Under Title 18 of the United States Code, Section 1001, willfully and knowingly concealing a material fact by any trick, scheme, or device, or knowingly making a false statement in connection with an Extended Benefits claim, is a Federal offense. You can be punished with a fine of not more than \$10,000 or imprisoned for not more than five years or both.

Disaster Unemployment Assistance (DUA)

Individuals whose work or self-employment is interrupted because of a disaster and who are not eligible for UI or Disability Insurance benefits, may be eligible for DUA benefits. You can file a claim after EDD announces that DUA benefits are available.

Work Sharing (WS)

The WS program gives employers an alternative to reducing their work force. Before the enactment of the WS program, if employers had to reduce their work force, they had no choice but to lay off workers. Under California's WS program, employers can file WS

plans with EDD to reduce the work week of participating employees. Participating employees could receive reduced UI weekly benefits corresponding to the percentage reduction of their work hours.

Everyone benefits under the WS program. Employers keep trained workers during a slowdown and employees keep their jobs.

Partial Claims

Some employers participate in the partial claims program. These employers give the "Notice of Reduced Earnings," form DE 2063, to their full-time employees:

- Who are laid off for no more than two consecutive weeks, or
- Whose gross earnings, when reduced by \$25 or 25 percent, whichever is greater, are less than their weekly benefit amount.

Employees use a DE 2063 form to claim benefits instead of the regular Continued Claim form. Mail the form in the envelope provided. The DE 2063 form represents a seven-day period, usually based on the employer's payroll week. Employees remain attached to the employer and do not have to look for other work, but must be able to work and available for work.

OTHER EDD SERVICES

Job Services

At EDD Job Service and partner sites, you can enroll in the CalJOBSSM Internet based job and résumé listing system. With CalJOBSSM you can produce a quality résumé and view a wide variety of job listings within your city or anywhere in the State. If you have Internet access you can also enroll at www.caljobs.ca.gov The Job Service sites can also provide you with information about labor market conditions, services to veterans, and programs to assist those with barriers to employment. Information on services available, as well as locations of Job Services offices, can be found on EDD's Internet Web site at www.edd.ca.gov.

These services are provided at no cost and are available to job seekers who are legally entitled to reside and work in the United States. For more information, contact the local EDD Job Service office listed in the Government Pages of your telephone directory, or by calling EDD.

Reemployment Services

California has a system to identify claimants for whom few job openings exist and who are, therefore, likely to exhaust their benefits.

The EDD schedules those individuals most in need of assistance to an orientation to reemployment services. Once you have been scheduled for an orientation to reemployment services interview, failure to attend can result in loss of UI benefits.

One-Stop Services

Comprehensive One-Stop Centers provide access to a full range of services pertaining to employment, training and education, employer assistance, and guidance for obtaining other assistance. One-Stop Career Centers use varied strategies in providing the appropriate services to meet the needs of their customers. California's Job Service is an integral partner in the One-Stop Career system.

Information and county-by-county listings of all California One-Stop Career Centers and access points including addresses, phone numbers, and hours of operation can be accessed on the Internet, at http://www.edd.ca.gov/one-stop.

- Core Services are available and include, in part, labor market information, initial assessment of skill levels, and job search placement assistance.
- Intensive Services are available to eligible unemployed individuals
 who have completed at least one core service, but have not been
 able to obtain employment, or employed individuals needing
 additional services to obtain or keep employment that will lead to
 personal self-sufficiency.
- Training Services are available to eligible individuals who have met the requirements for intensive services and have not been able to obtain or keep employment. Individual Training Accounts are established to finance training based upon the individual's choice of selected training programs.

America's Workforce Network (AWN)

If you need information about finding jobs and job training in your community, call the AWN Toll-Free Help Line or visit America's Service Locator on-line. Most of the services that may help you get back to work are available through your local One-Stop Career Center. The AWN Toll-Free Help Line and America's Service Locator can help you find the location of the center nearest you.

Local services that may be available include:

- Assessment and counseling
- Job search and placement assistance

- Information about local education and training providers
- Access to computers, telephones, and fax machines

Toll-Free Help Line 1-877-US2-JOBS (1-877-872-5627)

America's Service Locator www.servicelocator.org

Disability Insurance (DI)

California's State Disability Insurance program has two parts, State Disability Insurance (SDI) and Paid Family Leave (PFL). SDI provides benefits to eligible workers who have a wage loss because they are unable to do their regular work due to illness or injury unrelated to work, or pregnancy. Effective July 1, 2004, PFL benefits will be paid to eligible workers who take time off work to care for a seriously ill child, spouse, parent, domestic partner, or to bond with a new minor child. You can obtain an SDI or PFL claim form by telephoning the SDI or PFL office at the toll-free numbers below. You can also obtain these forms on EDD's Internet Web site at .">www.edd.ca.govhttp://www.edd.ca.gov>.

EDD State Disability Insurance (SDI) Toll-Free Numbers:

English 1-800-480-3287 Spanish 1-866-658-8846 TTY (Non Voice) 1-800-563-2441

EDD Paid Family Leave (PFL) Toll-Free Numbers:

English 1-877-BE THERE (1-877-238-4373) Spanish 1-877-379-3819 TTY (Non Voice) 1-800-563-2441

OTHER IMPORTANT INFORMATION

Child Support Intercept

If you are delinquent in paying a child support obligation that has been filed with a court, we will withhold 25 percent of your weekly benefits. The money will be sent to the Department of Child Support Services Local Child Support Agency that is enforcing the child support order. If you have child support obligations in more than one county, the money deducted from your benefits will go to the county that filed first. Contact the office of the Local Child Support Agency if you have questions about child support deductions or distribution of the money.

Fraud Prevention and Detection

The EDD recognizes your concerns about imposter fraud and the threat of identity theft. Imposter fraud occurs when someone intentionally files a UI claim using another person's employment or personal information. EDD actively investigates cases of imposter fraud and is committed to protecting the identities of legitimate claimants. To assist in these efforts, if there is reason to suspect a UI claim may have identity or imposter issues, you may receive a Request for Identity Verification (DE 1326C) requesting you to validate the information provided when you filed for UI benefits. The Department will contact employers(s) and governmental entities to verify the documents and any information you supply.

To learn about what steps you can take to protect your identity and prevent imposter fraud, download the Protect Your Identity and Stop Unemployment Insurance Imposter Fraud (DE 2360EE) brochure from EDD's Web site at www.edd.ca.gov/uirep/uipub.htm or call (916) 255-1743 to request a copy.

Verification of Right to Work

The Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986 requires EDD to review the citizen or alien status of <u>all</u> UI claimants. When you file a claim or reopen your present claim, we must ask you to declare, under penalty of perjury, whether you are a citizen or national of the United States, or an alien in a satisfactory immigration status. Satisfactory immigration status means that you are lawfully residing in the United States <u>and</u> are legally authorized to work.

<u>If you are not a United States citizen</u>, you will be asked to provide proof of your immigration status and work authorization.

This may include, but is not limited to:

- Your alien registration card, or
- Other document(s) issued by the United States Citizenship and Immigration Services (USCIS), or
- Any document(s) you consider to be proof of your satisfactory immigration status.

The document(s) you present will be verified with USCIS. You will also be asked to make a declaration about your citizenship or immigration status during the period you earned the wages on which your claim is based.

Alien claimants must show continuing work authorization from the USCIS. The documents must be presented to the EDD before the expiration date. Once the work authorization has expired and the EDD has no evidence that the work authorization has been extended, the EDD can no longer pay benefits. Benefits will be denied from the expiration date until the extension document is provided.

Whether you are a citizen, national, or alien, you must be ready and able to establish your right to work when you are hired. You may be denied benefits for any week in which we find that you are unable to establish your right to work in the United States.

Verification of Social Security Account Number

The EDD may require you to verify your social security account number as being the one issued to you by the Social Security Administration (SSA) if the information available to EDD indicates that the social security account number presented by you may belong to another individual, is not a valid social security account number, or was never issued by the SSA, or that the wages shown in the base period of the claim may belong to another individual.

Some of the most common errors associated with social security account numbers are:

- The SSN being used is incorrect. You may have forgotten the number or transposed the number when you provided it to your employer.
- The name at the SSA is different than the one you used to file your claim. You may have changed your name and not notified the SSA.
- The date of birth at the SSA is different than the date of birth you gave when you filed your claim.

If the EDD requires you to verify your social security account number, which you provided to EDD during the claim application, you must submit verification of your social security account number through the SSA, or you may submit to EDD a copy of your annual statement issued to you by the SSA. A copy of your Social Security Card will not satisfy this requirement. The location of your nearest SSA office can be found on the SSA Web site at http://www.ssa.gov/reach.htm, or in your local telephone book in the Federal Government listing under "Social Security Administration."

Confidentiality

Although federal and state laws prohibit the revealing of information about your employment and your UI claim to your spouse, relatives, friends, non-interested parties, and private interest groups, federal legislation requires that such information be made available to state and federal Welfare, Medical Assistance, Food Stamps, Housing, and Child Support Enforcement agencies. Confidentiality is the responsibility of all agencies using the information.

Privacy Act Statement

The Privacy Act of 1974 requires that you be furnished this statement because you are asked to provide your Social Security number when filing a UI claim. Your Social Security number is requested under the authority of the Internal Revenue Code of 1954 (26 U.S.C. 85, 6011(a), 6050B, and 6109(a)). Disclosure of your Social Security number for this purpose is mandatory. Should you decline to disclose your Social Security number, your claim for UI benefits will not be processed.

Your Social Security number will be used (1) to process your claim and determine your eligibility for UI, (2) to report your unemployment benefits to the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) as income, (3) for statistical purposes, (4) for cross matching by public assistance agencies or other governmental entities in the official performance of their duties.

Telephone Services

Many EDD services can be accessed by telephone. The Interactive Voice Response System (IVR) provides general information 24 hours a day and information about your check Monday through Saturday, 6 a.m. until midnight, and Sunday from 6 a.m. to 9 p.m., Pacific Standard Time. Unemployment Insurance check information includes the date your last check was issued, the amount paid, and period of time paid. To access your check information, you will be asked to enter your social security number and a personal identification number, called a PIN on your telephone keypad. You will establish your PIN the first time you use the IVR to access your check information. The EDD's Interactive Voice Response System provides step-by-step instructions to guide you to services you want, in English and Spanish. For faster access to check information, it is best to call outside of regular business hours.

Missed appointments, appeals, overpayments, and UI claim information are handled by customer service representatives at Information Call Centers Monday through Friday, 8 a.m. to 5 p.m. Monday and Tuesday are usually our busiest days. For faster service, call us Wednesday or Thursday to file your claim or to inquire about your claim. You must, however, call by Friday of the week in which you become unemployed to receive credit for that week.

Outside California: If you reside in another state and your UI benefit claim is against California (California is the state paying the benefits to you) the same telephone services as described above are available to you.

For information on employment services in your state, check the Government Pages of your local telephone directory under State Government Offices. Remember that other states have different names for their employment services. In some states the local employment service may contact you directly about job registration and job search services.

<u>Telephone Services for the Deaf, Hard of Hearing, and Speech-</u> Disabled

Deaf and hard of hearing customers can call EDD direct on TTY to file for unemployment benefits or get current information on their unemployment claim. Call the TTY number 1-800-815-9387, between 8 a.m. and 5 p.m. Pacific Standard Time, Monday through Friday. TTY users and people with speech disabilities can also use the California Relay Service (CRS) to contact EDD. Provide the CRS with the EDD phone number on page 1.

NOTE: The TTY 800 number does not accept voice calls.

Internet Services

Internet Claim Filing

File your UI claim the fast and easy way using **eApply4UI**, EDD's Internet application. eApply4UI is reliable and secure, and is available in English or Spanish, 24 hours a day. Access eApply4UI on the Internet at www.edd.ca.gov/eapply4ui or at https://eapply4ui.edd.ca.gov.

Other Internet Services

Access EDD's home page at www.edd.ca.gov to learn more about services the Department provides.

Federal Income Tax and Unemployment Insurance Benefits

Unemployment Insurance is taxable income and must be reported on your federal income tax return. The EDD will mail you a form 1099G that states the amount of benefits <u>paid</u> to you during the previous year. The 1099G form <u>should</u> arrive by January 31. If you do not receive the 1099G form, you may request a duplicate by calling 1-800-795-0193 or write to EDD, Insurance Accounting Division, MIC 24, P.O. Box 2408, Rancho Cordova, CA 95741-2408. Be sure to include your name, social security number, mailing address, and the year for which you are requesting a duplicate 1099G. If you have questions regarding the taxability of UI benefits, contact the IRS.

Voluntary Federal Income Tax Withholding

You may request that federal taxes be withheld from your benefit checks. This option is strictly voluntary; you are not required to have taxes withheld from your benefits. Some important points to consider when you make this choice:

- Unemployment compensation is subject to federal income tax.
 Annually, the EDD will report your benefits to the IRS.
- Requirements exist pertaining to estimated tax payments. Failure to pay required estimated income tax may result in federal income tax penalties.
- If you elect to have federal income taxes withheld, the adjusted weekly benefit amount is your weekly benefit amount minus deductions due to wages earned, illness, or certain other reasons.

1099G

Form 1099G will also show the total federal taxes withheld, if any. If you have questions concerning your tax liability, contact the IRS.



STATE OF CALIFORNIA

LABOR AND WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

EMPLOYMENT DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT

EDD is an equal opportunity employer/program. Auxiliary aids and services are available upon request to individuals with disabilities. Requests for services, aids, and/or alternate formats need to be made by calling the information numbers listed in this booklet.